Digital Maps   N00124-15-T-0423

1. What should the size be?  Since they are to be viewed on iPads as well as in auditorium via projector, we are thinking that the maps should be 2048x1536 pixels.     

JPEG of 2048x1536 are sufficient for the department’s needs.   As maps are described in the manner they will be used, only limited ‘zooming, cutting and cropping’ will be required.

2. If the maps are JPEG one can zoom in via the viewing application. Does “zooming capabilities” mean interactive maps?  

Interactive maps are NOT required – zooming/cropping as required will be done with device applications (i.e. viewers and/or MS PowerPoint® or MS Word®).

3. Does “a fine level of granularity topography” mean shaded relief or elevation lines? 

The following definition has been added to the SOW.  “Topographic maps shall indicate large-scale detail and quantitative representation of relief, and natural and man-made features.  In addition, topographical maps shall provide a fine level of granularity including shaded relief and elevation lines.”  

4. On the product list there is a brief description for each map. In some cases there are links to actual maps. Are you going to provide source maps as content guidelines or we are responsible to do research? In the past we have produced maps for the Center of Military History, Dept. of Defense and they provided all the original maps, we just had to create the digital versions. We have also worked on maps for the West Point Academy, where we were doing some research and were provided with feedback from their historians.  We are trying to figure out the working process, the level of collaboration with the client, The Strategy and Policy Department at the Naval War College.

Links to actual maps are provided only as examples -- Source maps and historical information and graphics are to be provided by vendor.  Points of Contact will be provided to resolve questions of content and specific chart format.

5.  What is the preferred file format?  

As zooming will not be required, JPEG is the preferred format.  Vector rendering is beyond the requirement of this RFQ and all formats are requested to conform with the SOW.

6.  All historical information requirements are contained in the Statement of Work.

7.  Does the Navy have some version of these maps already in-house and needs a vendor to re-create them to fit presentation specifications, or does the vendor need to locate and plot these maps from scratch?

These maps are to be vendor created without Government Furnished Equipment or Intellectual Property (GFE/GFI).

8.  Are there specific graphic design or formatting templates we should adhere to? If not, is it the Navy’s expectation that all maps will have the same general look (such as fonts, color conventions, etc.)?

While there is no specific graphic design or formatting template for this request, a standardized font, color and general format schema is desired and should be maintained throughout the project.

9.  Do you require the vendor to supply the supporting reference material used to derive these maps? In cases where there is ambiguity (political regions, for example), should the vendor plan on conferring with someone at the college?

Subject matter experts (SME’s) on every required map/subject have been identified and may be consulted (through the technical representative) during the work period.  Supporting reference material is not required as individual maps will be confirmed by SME’s through the COR before the final delivery is accepted by the government.  Reclamas to specific map derivations and/or informational overlays will be submitted in a timely manner when the drafts are reviewed.

10.  Will the maps be reviewed for approval by the Navy before signoff? If so, how many rounds of revisions will be needed?

Yes.  In most cases, two rounds will be sufficient; the first for initial review and a second to verify any altered or corrected information or product.

11.  Is there an incumbent providing these maps to the Navy?


No.  This is an initial start-up project that has been accomplished ad hoc to date.

12.  Are the maps presented in the order of priority or can the vendor work to a different order of delivery?


The order of delivery is not listed and will not be prioritized.  It is desirable that each module 
be submitted for review as a complete package and will be signed off accordingly.

13.   What is the maximum size the maps will appear?  Will they be projected onto a classroom screen?

Used in PowerPoint®, they will be projected to a maximum of 15’x20’ auditorium screen.

14.  For EACH map, can your team provide an example of the map you wish us to “replicate as close as reasonable” (so we don’t infringe on copyrights)?

No – the maps requested are needed for instructional work and currently do not exist in the form required.  As such, they must be developed from scratch.

15.  OR, if that’s not available, then provide an example of another map showing the “look and feel” and “level of detail” needed (could be another time, place and event).  

Examples are presented in several of the modules – artistic discretion is given to the vendor to provide a solution.  If in doubt, a SME will be able to confer with the vender as to the intent of the individual map.  (Also see question #10).

 16.  PS I found it difficult to find some of the maps that we’re referred to on the links.

 
Please identify any questions or difficulties during the development process and a SME will 
answer the question or provide alternate example or web link to clarify the requirement.

American War for Independence 
Is there a 6th map, “Key Campaigns”?


No.  Correction has been made to the SOW.  “Key Campaigns” has been added to Map 5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Commanding the Commons - Map Areas 2) Western Europe in 1790; Map of Napoleonic Wars; Mediterranean c. 1805     Map Type  2) Topographical map of the Iberian Peninsula
The information here is not clear


Correction made to the SOW.  Clarifying remarks were added to the “Map Type” column.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Sea Power and Rising - 1) Europe, World map showing the extent of the British Empire,  
Losing Global Leadership -  4) World Map    
Are these two the same or different?
 

Yes these are two separate maps-- the first map must highlight the British Empire -- the second 
is simply a map of the world at that time.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Rise of the Superpowers  -  2) Europe/Asia/South Pacific - 1949 to 1953 2a) Iron Curtain vs expansion of U.S. alliance system 2b) NATO, ANZUS, US-Philippines, US-Japan, US-ROK - 
Is Map 2 just one map, or there are different maps?


Correction made to the SOW.  Map 2 (Europe/Asia/South Pacific - 1949 to 1953) is one map with 
the requested additional “historical information and graphics” listed below:


a) Iron Curtain vs expansion of U.S. alliance system


b) NATO, ANZUS, US-Philippines, US-Japan, US-ROK


The same convention has been made throughout the SOW in order to be consistent.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The Rise of China - Map 5 Political map of the Korean Peninsula c. 1950-1951 
Is all the information (5a– 5o) to be included on just one map?


No.  Different maps are required for this section.

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Also, under the Type of Map column some of the maps are topological, other topographical and other political. Is it possible to make the descriptions clearer?


Subject matter experts can be consulted if options of maps are in doubt.


Specific definition of political and topographic maps added to the SOW under section 1.1 Scope 
of Work

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
17.  Should the price quote be broken down by each map, an average or a total sum?

Vendors are requested to provide total cost, and detailed pricing by individual Case Study. 

18.  Do you have a budget for this project?  


Yes, however budget information cannot be disclosed..

19.  Given the quantity of maps involved, it would be ideal to have two weeks to provide our quote.

   
Timeline for contracting matters is at the discretion of the customer and contracting office.

